
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 

AUGUST 27, 2018 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, August 27, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, 
Cedarburg, WI, in the second floor Council Chambers.  
            

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Mike O’Keefe 
 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
  

Common Council – Mayor Mike O’Keefe, Council 
Members Dan von Bargen, Jack Arnett, Kristin Burkart 
(via speakerphone), Rick Verhaalen, Garan Chivinski, 
Patricia Thome, and Rod Galbraith 
 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - August 13, 2018 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
*    A. Consider Ordinance No. 2018-13 to rezone the parcel at W68 N926-30 

Washington Avenue from B-2 Community Business District to B-2/PUD 
Community Business District/Planned Unit Development District, which includes 
site, architectural, landscaping, exterior lighting and CSM approval; and action 
thereon (Plan Comm. 08-06-18) 

  
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
* A. Consider Resolution No. 2018-23 commending Carlson Tool and Manufacturing 

for 60 years of service in the community; and action thereon 
 
* B. Consider implementation of a Community Tree Planting Program; and action 

thereon 
 
* C. Consider payment of bills dated 08/20/18, transfers for the period 08/09/18 

through 08/20/18; and payroll for the period 07/29/18 through 08/11/18; and 
action thereon 

 
 

Page 1 of 51



*** D. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
    

 1. Consider approval of new Operator License applications for the period 
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 for:  Benjamin D. Voith and Gina R. 
Wildner   

   
 2. Consider approval of renewal Operator License applications for the period 

July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 for:  Joshua P. McCutcheon and Scott 
W. Steffen   

  
10.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
 
11. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 

It is anticipated the Common Council will adjourn to closed session pursuant to: 
 

  State Statutes 19.85 (1)(g) to confer with legal counsel who is rendering oral or 
written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the Council with respect to 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved, more specifically, to: 

o Discuss the Rachel LaPlant claim against the City for a vehicle accident 
that occurred on February 14, 2018. 

 

 State Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchasing of public 
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, 
more specifically, to: 

o Consider cellular tower leases for location on the monopole constructed 
on Western Avenue. 

o Consider the purchase of a parcel of land and Access and Permanent 
Utility Easement Agreement related to a portion of N69 N5269 Columbia 
Road 

 

 Approval of August 13, 2018 closed session minutes.    
 
13. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 

14. Consider cellular tower leases for location on the monopole constructed on Western 
Avenue; and action thereon  

 
15. Consider Purchase Agreement and Access and Permanent Utility Easement Agreement 

between BMO and the City for a parcel of land that is a portion of N69 W5269 Columbia 
Road; and action thereon 

  

Page 2 of 51



16. Consider authorizing the City Administrator/Treasurer to sign all documents related to 
the purchase of a parcel of land that is a portion of N69 W5269 Columbia Road; and 
action thereon 

 
17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 
 
 
 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
 
 
08/23/18 ckm  
 

Page 3 of 51

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


 

  CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20180813-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 
                                                                   August 13, 2018 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Monday, August 13, 2018, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 
Chambers.  Mayor O’Keefe called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Roll Call: Present -  Common Council – Mayor Michael O’Keefe, Council Members Dan 

von Bargen, Jack Arnett, Kristin Burkart, Rick Verhaalen, Garan 
Chivinski, Patricia Thome, Rod Galbraith 

                           
                    Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Attorney Michael 

Herbrand, Deputy City Clerk Amy Kletzien, Director of Engineering 
and Public Works Tom Wiza, City Planner Jon Censky, interested 
citizens and news media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Mayor O’Keefe’s request, Deputy City Clerk Kletzien verified that notice of this meeting was 
provided to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, 
to all news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the 
Wisconsin Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their 
input during the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Burkart, to approve the 
minutes of the July 30, 2018 meeting as presented.  Motion carried without a negative vote. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2018-21 TO AMEND THE COMPREHENSIVE LAND 
USE PLAN – 2025 FOR LOT 3 OF CSM 3769 ON THE EAST SIDE OF EVERGREEN 
BLVD. APPROXIMATELY 224 NORTH OF PIONEER ROAD FROM THE HIGH-
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL CLASSIFICATION TO THE OFFICE 
CLASSIFICATION; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Mayor O’Keefe declared the public hearing open at 7:02 p.m. to consider Resolution No. 2018-21 
to amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan – 2025 for Lot 3 of CSM 3769 on the east side of 
Evergreen Blvd. approximately 224 north of Pioneer Road from the High-Medium Density 
Residential classification to the Office classification. 
 
Planner Censky explained that Dr. Mantel has decided to add a third parcel, as well as the two that 
were rezoned in June, to build an orthodontics clinic.  Accordingly, the Land Use Plan amendment 
and rezoning process for this third site is the same as that which was just completed for the first two 
sites.  He added that Dr. Mantel’s plan is to secure the proper zoning now and then follow-up with 

Page 4 of 51



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180813-2 
August 13, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
detailed development plans later this year.  Dr. Mantel proposes combining all three lots together 
into one and then to construct a 4,000 square foot clinic with supporting onsite parking similar to 
Today’s Dentistry across the street. 
 
Steve Bassewitz, N13 W6869 Pheasant Court, asked if Planner Censky knew the size of the 
proposed clinic compared to Today’s Dentistry.  Planner Censky stated the Plans will be submitted 
and reviewed by the Plan Commission after the zoning change is approved.  Mr. Bassewitz asked if 
condominiums will be built south of the proposed clinic.  Planner Censky explained that the 
landowner is working on an agreement with the neighbors.   
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, Planner Censky stated that four more parking 
spaces will be added. 
 
In answer to Steve Bassewitz’s questions regarding the proposed clinic, Dr. Mantel explained that 
she wants to start building the clinic early next year, the building will be no larger than Today’s 
Dentistry, and there will be a larger parking lot to relieve any parking problems. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to close the 
public hearing. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2018-21 to amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan – 2025 for Lot 3 of CSM 
3769 on the East side of Evergreen Blvd. approximately 224 north of Pioneer Road from the High-
Medium Density Residential classification to the Office classification.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2018-11 TO REZONE THE ABOVE PROPERTY FROM 
RD-1 TWO FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO B-4 OFFICE AND SERVICE 
DISTRICT; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Mayor O’Keefe called the public hearing open at 7:09 p.m. to consider Ordinance No. 2018-11 to 
rezone the above property from RD-1 Two Family Residential District to B-4 Office and Service 
District. 
 
Planner Censky explained that this is the second step in the process to rezone the proposed property. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Galbraith, to close the 
public hearing. 
 
Motion made by Council Member von Bargen, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2018-11 to rezone the above property from RD-1 Two Family Residential District to 
B-4 Office and Service District.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2018-22 TO AMEND THE COMPREHENSIVE LAND 
USE PLAN – 2025 FOR THE PARCEL LOCATED AT N56 W6093 PORTLAND ROAD 

Page 5 of 51



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180813-3 
August 13, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
FROM THE GOVERNMENTAL AND INSTITUTIONAL CLASSIFICATION TO THE 
COMMERCIAL CLASSIFICATION; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Mayor O'Keefe called the public hearing open at 7:10 p.m. to consider Resolution No. 2018-22 to 
amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan – 2025 for the parcel located at N56 W6093 Portland 
Road from the Governmental and Institutional classification to the Commercial classification. 
Planner Censky explained that the petitioner is requesting rezoning of this parcel to make the former 
Baptist Church building more marketable for leasing purposes.  Specifically, under the I-1 
Institutional zoning, the petitioner is limited to nonprofit or quasi-public uses, such as a church, 
library, school or government office, etc.; whereas, the uses permitted in the B-3 Central Business 
District are commercial in nature.  Since this site borders the B-3 Central Business District are 
commercial in nature.  Since this site borders the B-3 District across Mill Street to the north, behind 
the property and is located across from Cedar Creek Park, the applicant feels the uses listed in the 
B-3 District are compatible with the area and more appropriate for the site than the limited uses 
permitted in the Institutional District. 
 
Planner Censky said that before any decision on this project can be made, the 2025 Land Use Plan 
and zoning must be amended so both documents are consistent with each other and they reflect the 
use being proposed.  Accordingly, the first step is to amend the Land Use Plan from the 
Governmental and Institutional classification to the Commercial classification.     
 
In answer to Council Member Chivinski’s question, Greg Zimmerschied said that two neighbors are 
open to a wide variety of businesses at this location. 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question regarding setbacks in the B-3 District, Planner 
Censky explained that this district does not need setbacks and allows up to the public right-of-way.  
Limitations include no on-site parking which will limit the use and opens the door for low intensive 
B-3 uses. 
 
In answer to Council Member Burkart’s question, Planner Censky stated that this site is not 
designated as a historical building; however, it likely qualifies. 
 
Greg Zimmerschied stated that the building has great bones and was purchased 10 years ago to 
maintain and preserve it. 
 
There was no public comment.    
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Galbraith, to close the 
public hearing. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Chivinski, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2018-22 to amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan – 2025 for the parcel located 
at N56 W6093 Portland Road from the Governmental and Institutional classification to the 
Commercial classification.  Motion carried without a negative vote.   
 

Page 6 of 51



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180813-4 
August 13, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2018-12 TO REZONE THE ABOVE PROPERTY FROM I-1 
INSTITUTIONAL AND PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT TO THE B-3 CENTRAL 
BUSINESS DISTRICT; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Mayor O'Keefe called the public hearing open at 7:19 p.m. to consider Ordinance No. 2018-12 to 
rezone the above property from I-1 Institutional and Public Service District to the B-3 Central 
Business District. 
Planner Censky explained that this is the second step in the process to rezone the site from I-1 
Institutional and Public Service District to the B-3 Central Business District. 
 
Motion made by Council Member von Bargen, seconded by Council Member Galbraith, to close the 
public hearing. 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Chivinski, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2018-22 to rezone the above property from I-1 Institutional and Public Service 
District to the B-3 Central Business District.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDER MAYOR O’KEEFE’S REAPPOINTMENT OF ERIC ARVOLD TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (TERM EXPIRES 09/06/22); AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Burkart, to approve 
Mayor O'Keefe’s reappointment of Eric Arvold to the Community Development Authority (term 
expires 09/06/22).  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR GROUNDWATER MONITORING AT THE 
FORMER CITY/TOWN LANDFILL SITE ON PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD; AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that Stantec has been completing the DNR required semi-annual 
groundwater monitoring and reporting at the Pleasant Valley landfill for approximately 20 years.  
Stantec has again agreed to hold their price for 2019 and 2020 at the same amount as the previous 
three contracts.  The cost is $10,050/year with the City paying 66 2/3% and the Town of Cedarburg 
paying 33 1/3%.  He said that staff recommends approval of the contract extension with Stantec 
because the Town of Cedarburg approves and they do a good job of monitoring the 12 wells on 40 
acres.  Director Wiza explained that he also received a quote today from DJ Burns for 25% less.  He 
said there is not a time crunch and that other firms could be considered.  He questioned the ethics of 
having one firm provide a bid ahead of time and then awarding the contract to someone who 
submits a bid after the first bid is public.  He suggested that he put together an RFP and include the 
scope of work that is involved, which could be mailed to a number of firms to bid on the project.  
Director Wiza explained that it may be more complicated because this is an inter-municipal contract 
with the Town of Cedarburg. 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s questions, Director Wiza explained that the landfill site 
on Pleasant Valley Road was a joint landfill with the Town of Cedarburg but has been dormant for 
many years.  The DNR requires that the City and Town maintain what is there because it has been 

Page 7 of 51



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180813-5 
August 13, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
capped.  The groundwater needs to be monitored in the Spring and Fall along with monitoring the 
drinking water wells of nearby properties.  Stantec has been agreeable to holding their price for the 
last eight years because they have the process down to a template.  There has been no effort on the 
City’s part to continue the process and contact nearby owners for well testing.  Director Wiza 
approached Stantec four years ago to inquire about only testing once per year and they did not see 
that as a possibility.  In regard to the reports, Director Wiza said they show that iron is high 
(marginal contaminant) with more significant readings from nitrates.  If nitrates are elevated and 
infants are exposed to them it can have some issues with a blue baby syndrome.  None of the 
readings have caused this type of concern.  The only concern at this time is MTEB (in small parts) 
which was added to leaded gasoline.  The theory is that it did not come from the landfill but from an 
adjoining property that may have dumped some gasoline because it is in small parts.  There has not 
been any pattern or increase during the monitoring.   
 
In answer to Council Member Burkart’s question regarding arsenic, Director Wiza said that most 
arsenic is natural occurring and he suspects that they have looked at all of the parameters and 
decided which wells can be dropped off over the years.  It is a very narrow list that they need to test 
for. 
 
Council Member Galbraith expressed concern for rubber stamping an extension every two years and 
thought that a long term contract would be better.  He was surprised that the City does not require a 
bid process for something of this nature.  He has a difficult time simply extending a contract for two 
years for the past ten years without any ability to have the price negotiated. 
 
In answer to Mayor O'Keefe’s question as to how long the City has worked with Stantec, Director 
Wiza said that Stantec acquired Northern Environmental who held the previous contract and they 
have been doing the work for as long as he has been with the City, over 20 years. 
 
Council Member Galbraith said that he had a hard time approving this contract with such short 
notice.   
 
Council Member Verhaalen asked Director Wiza how much time it would require from him to bid 
out this contract.  Director Wiza explained that an RFP and scope of work would need to be done.  
Some benefits of Stantec doing the work include testing a dozen wells over a 40 acre site.  It would 
take some time on his part to find the wells and keys to explain the work to another company.  If the 
City decides to bid this work out every two years, the amount of his time would add up.  He asked 
the Council what parameters they want to set to determine qualifications on the consultants. There 
is a certain level of complication involving the types of firms available for the work and the Town 
of Cedarburg agreeing to a particular consultant.   
 
Council Member von Bargen said that a 25% savings will be approximately $2,500/year or $1,600 
for the City. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen questioned whether it would cost the City more than the savings 
amount, with the added work for Director Wiza. 
 
Council Member Galbraith stated that the City could create its own template for future RFPs. 
 

Page 8 of 51



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180813-6 
August 13, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
Director Wiza said that Stantec has formed relationships with the individual landowners that have 
wells tested and this would need to be reestablished with any new firm. 
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Director Wiza said that there are five homes that 
are tested.  It is a doable task and an eligibility list would need to be created.   
 
In answer to Council Member Galbraith’s question, Attorney Herbrand stated that the City will need 
to reach out to qualified contractors for this work.  Director Wiza will contact local firms to 
determine if they can do groundwater testing.   
 
Council Member Thome said that there are many factors and the homeowners have a sense of 
security working with Stantec.  There is justification to make certain that the City is making the best 
use of the expense.  If the City and Town can agree to get a longer contract, she would feel more 
comfortable reaching out to other firms for quotes. 
 
Mayor O’Keefe asked if the required qualifications can be listed in the RFP.  Director Wiza said 
that he is not sure if a certified hydrogeologist is a legal requirement and he will need to ask the 
DNR. 
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, Director Wiza said the work involves testing, 
sampling and monitoring that involves chain of custody and following a strict protocol from the 
DNR.  
 
Director Wiza expressed concern for different firms testing the site and producing slightly different 
results, maybe because of their procedure, and then reading more into it. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen asked if surface water was tested at the site.  Director Wiza said that it 
was all groundwater and shallow well monitoring. 
 
City Attorney Herbrand stated that the City will want to run any RFPs through the Town to make 
sure they are on board. 
 
Council Member Chivinski stated that this may be a good time to take inventory of all the 
agreements the City is involved in with the Town, to determine if it is a good mix and they are 
paying their fair share.  
 
Council Member Thome said that if it is the consensus of the Council to get bids on this service, 
that it is for a longer time period than two years.   
 
In answer to Mayor O’Keefe’s questions, Director Wiza opined that the site will need to be 
monitored indefinitely.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said that any contract will include a 
clause to allow the City to stop services if the monitoring becomes unnecessary. 
 
Council Member von Bargen asked if there were other short term contracts that will be up for 
renewal soon. 
 

Page 9 of 51



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180813-7 
August 13, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
Director Wiza said that the garbage and recycling contract will be up for renewal in December 
2020.  This is a seven year contract and the City does get proposals on this service; although, there 
are not many choices.  Most engineering contracts are bid separately for each project.   
 
City Attorney Herbrand stated that the City has the option to choose the lowest responsible bidder 
for monitoring the site. 
 
Council Member von Bargen agrees with Council Member Thome that it would be advantageous to 
get a long term lower bid.   
 
Mayor O’Keefe was in favor of hiring a local firm for the monitoring service. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Galbraith, seconded by Council Member Burkart, to table the 
consideration for the extension of the contract for groundwater monitoring until the time that the 
RFPs can be brought forward for consideration by the Common Council.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER PAYMENT OF BILLS DATED 08/08/18, TRANSFERS FOR THE PERIOD 
7/25/18 THROUGH 08/08/18; AND PAYROLL FOR THE PERIOD 07/15/18 THROUGH 
7/28/18; AND ACTION THEREON  
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to approve 
payment of bills dated 08/08/18, transfers for the period 7/25/18 through 8/8/18, and payroll for the 
period 07/15/18 through 7/28/18.  Motion carried without a negative vote.   
 
CONSIDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Galbraith, seconded by Council Member Burkart, to approve new 
Operator License applications for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 for Audry L. Krick 
and Megan N. Shodeen.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
Motion made by Council Member Chivinski, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve 
renewal Operator License applications for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 for 
Elizabeth A. Albers, David J. Burnside, James P. Dennis, B.J. Homayouni, Christopher M. 
Homayouni and Douglas E. Yip.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated that four interviews are scheduled for the part-time 
accounting position in the Treasurer’s Office and five interviews are scheduled for the part-time 
Administrative Assistant position in the Clerk’s Office. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS – None 
 
COMMENTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT - None  

Page 10 of 51



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180813-8 
August 13, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to adjourn to 
closed session at 8:07 p.m. pursuant to State Statutes 19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel who is 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the Council with respect to 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved, more specifically, to discuss Ozaukee 
County Case Number 2017CV000334 Anita Clark et al vs. City of Cedarburg et al.  Approval of 
July 30, 2018 closed session minutes.  Motion carried on a roll call vote with Council Members von 
Bargen, Arnett, Burkart, Verhaalen, Chivinski, Thome, and Galbraith voting in favor. 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to reconvene to 
open session at 8:45 p.m.  Motion carried on a roll call vote with Council Members von Bargen, 
Arnett, Burkart, Verhaalen, Chivinski, Thome, and Galbraith voting in favor. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to adjourn the 
meeting at 8:45 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
              
      Amy D. Kletzien, MMC/WCPC 
      Deputy City Clerk 

Page 11 of 51



 
 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE:   August 27, 2018                                                  ITEM NO: 8. A. 
 
TITLE:  Consider Ordinance No. 2018-13 to rezone the parcel at W68 N926-30 Washington Avenue 

from B-2 Community Business District to B-2/PUD Community Business District/Planned Unit 

Development District, which includes site, architectural, landscaping, exterior lighting and CSM 

approval; and action thereon (Plan Comm. 08-06-18) 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   

Bell Investment Properties, LLC just razed their existing multi-tenant building at W68 N926-30 

Washington Avenue in preparation for their new updated Orthodontic facility on the same site in the 

same location as the existing building. To accomplish their proposed redevelopment project 

however, they need the use of the PUD Overlay District for the flexibility it offers in applying the 

regulations of that base B-2 District. This flexibility is needed because the existing structure does not 

currently meet the setback requirements and therefore is classified as legal non-conforming. 

Moreover, because this site has public road frontage on three of the four sides and the B-2 District 

setback requirements are substantial at 40 feet, redevelopment of the site is severely hindered if not 

impossible. Compounding this situation is the requirement that the applicant dedicate the full width 

right-of-way of Washington Avenue. Accordingly, the only way to accomplish their plan is to 

introduce the PUD Overlay District to allow the Plan Commission, and ultimately, this Common 

Council to set the regulations base on the plan proposed. The modifications to the underlying district 

are as follows: 

 

Nonconformity to Standards: 

As permitted under the PUD Overlay District, the applicant is seeking your approval to adjust the 

following standards of the underlying B-2 District: 

1. Code Requirement – Sec. 13-1-54 h. B-2 District. Setback and Yards. There shall be a 

minimum building setback of forty (40) feet from the right-of-way of all existing or 

planned streets. 

Nonconformity – The proposed setback from Washington Avenue is 39.1’ and from 

Cambridge Avenue the proposed setback is 15.4’ 

2. Code Requirement – Sec. 13-1-82(f) (3) Parking Requirements (Landscaping) States: A 

perimeter greenbelt of at least five (5) feet in width shall be installed along the street 

frontage and along all interior lot lines. 

Nonconformity – Parking is proposed at a point up to the Washington Avenue right-of-way 

line and From Cambridge Avenue at a point .5’ from the right-of-way line. From the north 

property line parking is proposed up to the property line (Note: the existing asphalt is located 

up to this property line as well). 

3. Code Requirement – Sec.13-1-82 (c) Parking Stall Size States: Each parking space shall 

not be less than one hundred and eighty (180) square feet, exclusive of the space 

required for ingress and egress. 

Nonconformity – 2 parking stalls measure 150 square feet. 

 

Site Plan: 

The applicant is proposing a 6,913 square foot building dedicated to the Orthodontic practice only. 

For the most part, the plan is to utilize the site, traffic pattern and parking layouts as currently exists Page 12 of 51



but with a slightly expanded paved area to better define the parking stalls and traffic circulation. The 

site will be supported by 32 parking stalls an increase from the existing 28 stalls. The site plan shows 

the continued use of the 10’ drive along the north side of the building but because this does not have 

sufficient width to meet two-way traffic requirements, it will need to be indicated as one-way traffic 

only. To prevent cars from scraping the new building, staff recommends that a stone separation from 

the building of at least 1 ½ feet be provided. Off the northeast corner of the parking lot they propose 

to locate the 12’ X 16’7” dumpster. The dumpster will be will be constructed of CMU (concrete) walls 

that stand 6’ tall accessed from the west through a 6’ high chain link fence with privacy slates on 

heavy duty hinges.   

 

Architecture: 

Architecturally, the plans propose an attractive building defined by quality building material, and 

inviting design with a color scheme that compliments other buildings in the area. Specifically, they 

propose a building that stands 32’ tall at the peak with material consisting of attractive natural split 

stone with decorative EIFS crown molding at the top, aluminum clad windows and an expansive 

standing seam charcoal color metal roof. In the gable over the main entrance on the west elevation, 

the plan shows their corporate symbol and in the gable on the east elevation is the other corporate 

symbol and the identification name.  

 

Landscaping: 

According to the Landscape plan, the main entrance off Cedarburg Road and extending out from the 

base of the existing monument sign will be enhanced with the Plantings of Goldstrum Black-eyed 

Susan’s, A. W Spirea and Dwarf Fountain Grasses under a single Red Oak. This planting scheme is 

repeated on the north side of the entrance and along the Cambridge Avenue frontage adjacent to 

the parking lot as well. Foundational plantings include Miss Kim Lilacs at the southeast corner of the 

building accented by groupings of Sunrise Forsythia, Taunton Yew, Snowmound Spirea and Karl 

Foerster’s Feather Read Grass. 

 

Exterior Light: 

The building will be lit with decorative wall sconces that measure 22” high and 7’ wide located on all 

sides. These will be Kirchler lights of either the Manhattan collection or the Camden Collection (see 

attached cut-sheets) of either Anvil Iron or textured black color to complement the colors of the 

building. Either choice is appropriate for this building. The site lighting will be limited to replacing the 

existing pole lights with new poles at the same location and of the same height but with new light 

fixtures. (see enclosed cut-sheets). 

 

Signage: 

The existing monument sign along Washington Avenue will remain in its current location will be 

untouched. Staff notes however, that since the sign is located partially within the public right-of-way, 

the applicant will need to sign an agreement permitting it to remain but with the understanding that if 

the City ever needs it relocated or remove, that work will be completed at the expense of the owner. 

 This agreement will be recorded in the Ozaukee County Register of Deeds Office which will  

 

Certified Survey Map: 

As part of this project, the applicant has submitted a Certified Survey Map which will serve to 

dedicate the 40’ ultimate road right-of-way along the Washington Avenue because the existing 
Page 13 of 51



property line is defined to the center of the street.  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Because the applicant was caught off guard by the time needed to pursue the PUD Zoning District, 

they have submitted fully detailed plans in the hopes of securing their building permit immediate 

following this meeting. Staff recommends approval subject to approval of the need code changes as 

noted above and the following stipulations: 

 Cedarburg Light and Water approval of the water service to building. 

 If the water use increase, the applicant will be responsible for impact fees to cover that 

increase. 

 The applicant shall be limited to land disturbance activity of less than 0.5 acres and if the 

disturbance exceeds that limit a storm water management plans shall be required and 

approved by the City Engineer. 

 Fire protection features shall be approved by the Cedarburg Fire Department.  

 The applicant signing a waiver to maintain the monument sign at his expense in its current 

location in the Washington Avenue right-of-way. 

 The north driveway to be set off from the building by 1 to 11/2 feet.  
 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  

 At their August 6, 2018 meeting the Plan Commission reviewed this request and recommended 

approval subject to the stipulation stated above under staff recommendations plus the following: 

 Extended the public front sidewalk across the entire Washington Avenue frontage. 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Unapproved minutes from the August 6, 2018 Plan Commission meeting 
 Ordinance No. 2018-13 
 Fully detailed site, architectural, landscaping, exterior lighting plans and the Certified Survey 

Map. 
 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Bell Investment Properties LLC, Dr. Greg Bell 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

Page 14 of 51



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-13 

 

An Ordinance Rezoning the Parcel 

At W68 N926-30 Washington Avenue 

 

 

The proposed ordinance having been submitted to the City Plan Commission for recommendation and notice 

having been given pursuant to Wis. Statute, the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, does 

hereby ordain as follows: 

 

The following described real estate situated in the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, presently being 

in the B-2 Community Business District is hereby rezoned to the B-2/PUD Community  

Business District/Planned Unit Development District: 

 

Part of the Southeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ and part of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast 

¼ of Section 22, T 10 N, Range 21 E, City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, Wisconsin 

described as follows: Commencing at the South ¼ Corner of said Section 22; thence N 

02°12’23” W, 443.40 feet to the northerly line of lands to be described in Document 

Number 988403, The Point of Beginning: Thence N 87°22’37” E, 54.00 feet on said 

northerly line to the westerly Right-of Way of Cambridge Avenue; Thence 156.83 feet on 

the arc of a 152.42 foot radius curve to the right, having a chord which bears S 28°35’36” 

W, 150.00 feet on said westerly Right-of-Way, Thence S 58°04’27” W, 140.00 feet on 

said westerly Right-of-Way to the centerline of Washington Avenue; Thence N 

31°54’23” W, 255.03 feet on said centerline to the northerly line of lands described in 

Document Number 988403; Thence N 87°15’37” E, 255.90 feet on said northerly line to 

the Point of Beginning 

 

Tax Key Number: 13-040-0089.001 

Said parcel contains 0.863 acre, more or less 

 

This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as provided by law. 

 

Passed and adopted this 27
th

 day of August, 2018. 

 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Michael J. O’Keefe, Mayor 

 

 

Countersigned: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

Page 15 of 51



Page 16 of 51



Page 17 of 51



Page 18 of 51



Page 19 of 51



Page 20 of 51



Page 21 of 51



Page 22 of 51



Page 23 of 51



Page 24 of 51



Page 25 of 51



Page 26 of 51



Page 27 of 51



Page 28 of 51



Page 29 of 51



Page 30 of 51



Page 31 of 51



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-23 
 

A Resolution Commending Carlson Tool & Manufacturing 
For 60 Years of Service in the Community 

 
 WHEREAS, Carlson Tool & Manufacturing, having been founded in 1958 by Carl Edquist, 
has grown from a simple tool and die company to the largest tooling and manufacturing facility of 
its kind in North America; and 
 

WHEREAS, Carl Edquist’s vision of a responsive, dynamic company laid the foundation 
for expansion into new markets; and  
  
 WHEREAS, Carlson Tool & Manufacturing began operations in a small rented space in the 
center of Cedarburg until building at the current site and conducting business in their 104,000 
square foot, ISO-certified facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company’s second generation management team led by Jerry Edquist has 
focused on their customers and the market they service in several international locations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this commitment to customers has extended to a commitment to community 
by supporting many local initiatives, including the Ozaukee Ice Center, the Cedarburg Cultural 
Center, Summer Sounds concert series, The Greater Cedarburg Foundation, The Cedarburg Art 
Museum, the Cedarburg History Museum; and 
 
 WHEREAS, over the years, Carlson Tool & Manufacturing has had the honor of providing 
for over 1,300 families in Southeastern Wisconsin and is the largest private employer in Cedarburg, 
Wisconsin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Cedarburg hereby recognizes their important presence in our 
community for providing a rich history and commemorates and honors the sixty years of growth 
and commitment celebrated by Carlson Tool & Manufacturing; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, I, Michael O’Keefe, Mayor of the City of 
Cedarburg, join the citizens of the City of Cedarburg in recognizing Carlson Tool & Manufacturing 
as a significant and valuable member of this community and congratulate them on their 60th 
Anniversary. 
 
 Dated this 27th day of August 2018.   
 

          ____________________________________
          Michael O’Keefe, Mayor 
Attest: 

__________________________________ 
Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 
 

Page 32 of 51



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 27, 2018                                                                      ITEM NO:  9. B. 

                           

 

 

TITLE: Consider implementation of a Community Tree Planting Program; and action thereon 
 
 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  For the 2019 budget year we are moving $16,000 from tree planting account to 

contracted services in order to keep up with tree and stump removals.  This will increase the time for tree 

replacement which currently is around 3-4 years from the time a tree is removed.  To help with tree planting I 

have put together a community tree planting program that allows resident to pay for a tree to be planted at their 

location sooner than the City would be able to replace it.  The cost for a one tree will be $300.  

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  Positive 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  Community Tree Planting Request Form 

          

    

             

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Mikko Hilvo, Director of Parks, Recreation, & Forestry 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Mikko Hilvo, Director of Parks, Recreation, & Forestry 

                                                                  
 

 

Page 33 of 51



City of Cedarburg                                                                           

 

Community Tree Planting Program 

Want to contribute to Cedarburg’s Urban Tree Canopy? Cedarburg residents and business 

owners can purchase trees to be planted in the public right of way (between the sidewalk and the 

street) through the City's tree purchasing program. 

Community tree plantings occur annually in the Spring (April 1-June 1) and in the Fall 

(October 15th - November 15th. 

Tree orders can be placed at the Cedarburg Parks, Recreation, & Forestry office located at City 

Hall. The deadline for a Spring planting is January 31; the deadline for Fall planting is August 

31
st
; prior to the planting seasons. Please note – some tree species are Spring-dig only and are 

not available for Fall planting. 

All trees are sourced from local, licensed nurseries, and come with a one-year warranty. Trees 

will be planted by a licensed contractor. 

The cost for tree planting is $300 per tree. 

Residents are allowed to request a tree from the recommended planting list but the final decision 

on the type of tree and planting location will be determined by the City Forester based on which 

type of tree is best suited for the specific location. In the interest of the City’s species diversity 

goals and due to the fact that Maple species make up 38% of our public tree population, Maple 

trees will not appear on the Recommended Species List. 

  

Name: ___________________________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________________________ 

Tree Location: ____________________________________________ 

Type of Tree: _____________________________________________ 

 

Staff Only: 

Amount: ____________   Date Paid: ________________  Cash/Check/Credit: ______________ 

Date Tree Ordered: ______________ Type of Tree: ______________ Contractor: ___________ 

Date Tree Planted: ______________ 

 

Page 34 of 51



Page 35 of 51



Page 36 of 51



Page 37 of 51



Page 38 of 51



Page 39 of 51



Page 40 of 51



Page 41 of 51



Page 42 of 51



Page 43 of 51



Page 44 of 51



Page 45 of 51



Page 46 of 51



Page 47 of 51



Page 48 of 51



Page 49 of 51



Page 50 of 51



Page 51 of 51


	CC Agenda 08-27-18
	CC Minutes 08-13-18
	Blue Sheet - Rezoning Washington Avenue
	Ord 2018-13 - Rezoning Washington Avenue
	Bell Ortho CSM and Lighting Plans
	Bell Ortho Site Plans
	PC Minutes 08-06-18
	Res 2018-23 - Carlson Tool & Manufacturing
	Blue Sheet - Community Tree Planting Program
	Community Tree Planting Program - Request Form
	Bills
	CA Report 08 23 18



